
United Nat ions 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

EIGHTH SESSION 
0 fficial Records 

CONTENTS 
P•ct 

Measures to avert the threat of a new world war and to 
reduce tension in international relations (continued) ... 263 

Chairman: Mr. F. VAN LANGENHOVE (Belgium). 

In !he absence of the Chairman, Mr. Francisco 
Urrutw (Colombia), Vice-Chainnan, presided. 

Measures to avert the threat of a new world war 
and to reduce tension in international relations 
(A/2485/Rev.l and A/2485/Add.l) (con­
tinued) 

[Item 73]* 

1. Mr. NASZKOWSKI (Poland) stressed the im­
po~tance attached to the USSR proposal by his country, 
which had been the first victim of hitlerite aggression 
and felt it had particular reason to draw the attention 
of the United Nations to the dangers involved in the 
current armaments race. The Polish people, having 
restored their devastated country at the cost of great 
~xertions, were now engaged in the development of 
Its economic potential, and ardently desired peace, so 
that they could pursue their peaceful task undisturbed. 
~he USSR draft resolution was the more timely in 
VIew of the many signs that the forces of aggression 
were trying to aggravate the international tensions 
?till _persisting in spite of the hopes which had been 
msp1red by the conclusion of an armistice in Korea. 

2. The United States representative and his sup­
porters had asserted that President Eisenhower's 
speech of 16 April 1953 was an effort on the part of 
the United States to improve the international atmos­
phere. But although there had been some reference in 
that speech to the need for strengthening peace and 
reducing armaments expenditure, there had been 
nothing to show any desire on the part of the United 
States Government to participate in the solution of 
international problems in a spirit of co-operation and 
understanding, or to renounce the policy of strength. 
Since that time, indeed, events had shown some 
tendency to aggravate the causes of tension. The 
United States had continued the armaments race and 
had prevented the adoption of any decisions favourable 
to a settlement of the Korean problem. In Korea itself, 
the United States representatives were placing obstacles 
in the way of the application of the Armistice Agree­
ment, in particular in connexion with the repatriation 
of prisoners of war. They stubbqrnly maintained their 
refusal to allow the admission to the United Nations 
of the legitimate representatives ~-f the great Chinese 

*Indicates the item number on the a!genda of the General 
Assembly. !' 

263 

FIRST COMi\fiTTEE, 67atb 
MEETING 

Wednesday, 25 November 1953, 
at 10.30 a.m. 

New York 

people, but they continued to arm the Taiwan clique. 
They were planning to supply the latter with warships, 
probably in order to enable them to attack peaceful 
merchant vessels-such as the Polish ship Pretza, 
which was still in their hands, together with its crew 
-with even greater success. 
3. The United States continued to exert pressure on 
the European countries to hasten the incorporation of 
Western Germany in the aggressive Atlantic Treaty 
system. It was trying to remilitarize Japan, against 
the wishes of the Japanese people. Mr. Ni?Con, Vice­
President of the United States, had said a few days 
ago that the United States had been mistaken in 
bringing about the disarmament of Japan after the 
Second World War-a statement which the United 
States Secretary of State had supported. 
4. In addition, the leaders of the United States had 
rejected the Soviet proposals for the solution of the 
main problems by negotiation. 
5. That being so, it would be useful to analyse in 
detail the USSR draft resolution (A/2485/Rev.l). 
The main proposal was for unconditional prohibition 
of atomic, hydrogen and other weapons of mass 
destruction. That prohibition was essential if inter­
national tension was to be reduced, the danger of war 
removed and peace secured. It was the more essential 
in view of the fact that development of the production 
of such weapons took priority in the United States 
rearmament programme. As the New York Times 
had reported quite openly on 21 October 1953, the 
United States chiefs of staff would not be basing 
their plans on atomic weapons, if they thought their 
Government was planning to reach agreement with the 
Russians on the prohibition of that weapon. The 
schemes of people who imagined that atomic weapons 
could be employed with impunity must be foiled. And 
such persons existed, as could be seen from the cynical 
utterances of Mr. Gordon Dean, who had until recently 
been Chairman of the United States Atomic Energy 
Commission. On page 120 of his book Report on the 
Atom, Mr. Dean had written that while the napalm 
bomb was a terrible weapon, there were no inter­
national curbs on its use, and that he therefore thought 
there would be no opposition to the tactical use of the 
atomic weapon. The prohibition of such weapons would 
undoubtedly be an important step towards the reduction 
of international tension, and would be proof to the 
peoples of the world that the United Nations appre-
ciated their desires and needs. . 
6. In addition, the United States was expanding its 
armed forces and its production of conventional 
weapons. According to a report published by the 
National Planning Association on 25 October 1953, 
armaments expenditure, which totalled $US55,000 mil­
lion for the current year, might reach the figure of 
$US70,000 to 75,000 million in 1956. The beneficiaries 

A/C.1/SR.675 



264 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

of the armaments race were the American monopolies, 
which were anticipating proGts amounting to about 
$US43,000 million in 1953. The richest profits were 
netted by undertakings which were direct suppliers of 
military orders; in 1952 the General Motors profits 
h;\d been 10 per cent higher than in 1951 and those 
of Curtiss \Vright 31 per cent higher. The leading role 
played by the monopolies in American politics and the 
participation of their representatives in the United 
States Government made the reasons for the inflexible 
opposition of the ruling circles in the United States 
to any concrete plan of disarmament very clear. 

7. The armaments race was a very heavy burden for 
the American people: taxes were rising while purchas­
ing power was falling. From 1941 to 1952 federal 
taxes had risen from $US7,227 million to $US62,128 
million. The index of prices of consumer goods had 
risen from 1950 to 1952 by 10 per cent and the price 
of food by 13 per cent. In 1952 the United States 
had devoted one-fifth of the total national income to 
armaments. 

8. In the European Atlantic bloc countries, rearma­
ment was causing inflation and reducing standards of 
living. The industrial crisis, the effects of which had 
first been felt in light industry, was now extending 
to heavy industry: in France the index of indu~trial 
production had been seven points lower in the first 
quarter of 1953 than in the corresponding period of 
last year. In Italy the index of employment had been 
lower in 1952 than in 1948. That situation had led to 
a Imvering of the standard of living in the countries 
referred to. The United States was not only uncon­
cerned over that situation, but even found it financially 
advantageous: the New Y or!< Herald Tribune of 26 
October 1953 had said that money furnished by Amer­
ican taxpayers would be used in order to buy military 
power at various points around the Iron Curtain at 
a lower price than that which would be incurred by 
the maintenance of American armed forces. Similar 
calcubtions had been made by Mr. Lodge, in an article 
published in the magazine section of the New Y ariz 
Times of 22 November 1953. The rearmament of the 
Atlantic bloc countries also had detrimental effects on 
the under-developed countries; the fall in the market 
prices of raw materials reduced their income, thereby 
increasing their payment difficulties and compelling 
them to restrict their imports and consequently lower 
the standard of living of their people. 

:;, The discussions on disarmament which had been 
held in the United Nations for the last eight years, for 
example those which had taken place during the con­
sideration of that item by the First Committee, had 
shown very clearly that the United States was op­
posed to any reduction of armaments. Despite the 
protests of world public opinion, the United States 
insisted on the adoption of its plan of expansion of 
armaments and armed forces. The Soviet proposal 
for the reduction by one-third of the armed forces of 
the five great Powers was therefore of particular im­
portance. As l\Ir. Molotov had said on 13 November 
1953, there was no problem more urgent than that of 
disarmament and the cessation of the armaments race. 

10. The true objectives of the United States in con­
nexion with the establishment of military bases around 
the USSR and the other peoples' democracies had been 
revealed by a number of persons, including the United 
States Secretary of Defense, who had said, according 

to a report in the New York Times of 20 October 1953, 
that from . its network of military bases the United 
States could launch an attack against the USSR. 

11. There were such bases in the Scandinavian coun­
tries, Western Europe, Africa and Asia. United States 
diplomats had recently been active in concluding agree­
ments permitting the United States to set up bases in 
the Near and Middle East. With reference to the 
United Kingdom representative's remark (673rd meet­
ing) that such bases were always established with the 
full agreement of the countries concerned and were 
undoubtedly profitable to them economically, he re­
called that the report, dated 2 January 1953, of the 
sub-committee on overseas bases of the Senate Armed 
Services Committee stated that United States repre­
sentatives abroad had been obliged in some cases to 
exert pressure in order to obtain concessions. 

12. Neither the USSR nor the peoples' democracies 
could remain indifferent to such clearly aggressive 
preparations. Poland, for one, felt that it was the duty 
of the United Nations, under the Charter, to recom­
mend that the Security Council should take effective 
measures to eliminate those bases. 

13. Professor Kclsen, who had recently been invoked 
by the Greek representative, had written in February 
1951 in the book entitled Recent Trends in the Law of 
the United Nations, that if, in view of the North 
Atlantic Treaty, the war in Korea, the continuation in 
office of the Secretary-General and the "Uniting for 
peace" resolution ( 377 (V)), the organization of 
collective security was not in line with the old prin­
ciples of United Nations law, the answer was ex 
iniuria ius oritur. Consequently, the Greek representa­
tive's thesis that the North Atlantic Treaty and agree­
ments concerning military bases were in accordance 
with the Charter rested only on the premise that law 
was born of lawlessness. The Polish delegation, like 
many others, adhered to the principle that ex inuria 
ius non oritur. 

14. The rearmament of ~'estern Germany constituted 
a major threat to Europe in particular and to peace in 
general. The Polish people was particularly awa~e _of 
it, having in the course of its history been the vtctim 
of German militarism many times. Aggressive groups 
in Germany were conducting a campaign of hatred 
against Poland and other countries which had borne 
the German yoke. If their plans, directed by Hitler's 
former generals, came to fruition, those groups, ~eaded 
by Adenauer, would establish a new German Retch, at 
the expense not only of Eastern Europe, but ~!so. of 
France, Belgium, the Nether lands, the Scandmavtan 
countries, and so on. The German problem should be 
solved on the basis of the Potsdam agreements. In 
its notes, in particular in that of 3 November 1953, 
the USSR had stressed again that it was ready to take 
part in conversations with a view to finding a s~lution 
of international problems, in particular the questiOn of 
re-establishing a united, democratic and peaceful Ger­
many. The western Powers, however, were refusing 
to open such negotiations. The United States repre­
sentative had, at the preceding meeting, pretende~ to be 
in favour of negotiating, but his proposals-wluch. he 
had termed constructive-consisted solely in askmg 
for so-called free elections instead of trying to bring 
about the unification of Germany and the creation of a 
united and democratic German -Government and Ger­
man State. That opinion was shared by many western 



675th J\leeting-25 November 1953 265 

European statesmen. It was stated in the New States­
man and Nation of 21 November 1953 that the three 
western Powers had in fact prevented the conference 
from being held by setting prior conditions which they 
had known to be inacceptable. The article accused the 
western Powers of resorting to a hitlerian manoeuvre 
in ascribing to the adversary the dubious tactics they 
used themselves. Now that preparations were being 
made for the Bermuda Conference, the United States 
had increased its pressure on the United Kingdom and 
France to ratify the Bonn and Paris agreements. As 
the Paris correspondent of the New Y ark Times had 
written on 18 November 1953, that policy had provoked 
a violent reaction on the part of the various political 
groups in France, including deputies of the right. 

15. In notes dated 19 November 1953 the Polish 
Government had drawn the attention of the Govern­
ments of France, Belgium, the Netherlands, Luxem­
bourg, Denmark and Norway to the dangerous conse­
quences of ratifying treaties providing for the remili­
tarization of Western Germany, had stated that all the 
countries bordering on Germany should redouble their 
efforts to prevent the rebirth of German militarism and 
imperialism, and had emphasized that its action was 
motivated only by a sincere desire for a stable peace 
in Europe. , 

16. No one would be convinced by the argument that, 
before measures for disarmament were taken, an at­
mosphere of international trust must be brought about. 
He asked how such an atmosphere was to be created 
when the ruling circles of the United States used the 
atomic bomb as a threat and spread fear by claiming 
that the country was in danger of being attacked. The 
slanderous and lying propaganda broadcast by the 
Voice of America and the Voice of "Free Europe" 
increased existing tensions and brought about a climate 
favouring preparations for another war. 

17. At the preceding meeting, the United States repre­
sentative had done his best to represent the United 
States as a land of freedom and democracy. On the 
contrary, the outstanding features of the political life 
of the United States were the growth of fascism and 
the suppression of freedom of expression. The Gen­
eral Council of the Presbyterian Church in the United 
States of America-an organ to which no suspicion 
could possibly attach-had stated in a letter to the 
New York Times on 3 November 1953 that some con­
gressional investigations had come to resemble the 
inquisition and that great words such as love, peace, 
justice, charity and mercy and the ideas which underlay 
them had become suspect. According to the New Y ark 
Times of 26 June 1953, the American Booksellers 
Association had stated that private groups and govern­
mental organs were, inter alia, trying to prevent the 
sale of certain books and to disseminate lists of suspect 
books and authors. 

18. Slanderous and defamatory propaganda should be 
condemned, since it aggravated the cold war and served 
as preparation for a real war. The speech of the Pe­
ruvian representative at the preceding meeting belonged 
in that category. He had sought to defend the peoples of 
Poland and Czechoslovakia not against imperialist 
forces or the rebirth of German militarism, but against 
tried and true friends of those States. If he had been 
sincere, he would not have attempted to defend persons 
who were working against the interests of the Polish 
people. 

19. The representative of Peru had also expressed 
pity for certain members of the Polish Catholic Church 
and had demanded an answer. The answer given by 
the representative of the Dominican Republic on 23 
November 1953 (673rd meeting) should have been 
sufficient: no one in Poland was being subjected to 
persecution because of his religious beliefs, his convic­
tions or his ideas. Believers enjoyed full freedom of 
religious practice. But no one in Poland was free to 
make war propaganda or to spy for the United States 
on pretext of religion. Believers were able to distinguish 
between some members of the clergy who engaged in 
criminal activities with a view to the rebirth of Ger­
man militarism, in obedience to the orders of the 
Vatican and the United States, and the overwhelming 
majority of priests who condemned those members. The 
Polish Episcopate had clearly stated that it opposed 
any use being made of the Catholic religion and the 
Catholic Church for political purposes contrary to the 
interests of Poland by foreign groups seeking to 
exploit the religious beliefs of the population. 

20. Some representatives, including the representa­
tive of Greece, had pretended to consider the USSR 
representative's statement a mere repetition of old pro­
paganda. That attitude was all the more astonishing 
as those same representatives accepted a constant repe­
tition of such expressions as "the Soviet danger", "the 
defence of the West against the Eastern threat", "the 
Iron Curtain", and so on, which were pure libel. 

21. The desire of peoples for peace was not new, and 
the purpose of the USSR proposals was to satisfy it. 
Consequently, they dealt with problems which were not 
new, but which as yet had not been solved. There was, 
on the other hand, a certain change in the international 
atmosphere which was new, and which opened up 
prospects of solving the most important problems. All 
the peoples of the world wished contentious matters 
to be settled by means of negotiation. The USSR pro­
posals ( A/2485 / Rev .1) indicated concrete steps that 
should be taken in that direction. Their adoption would 
give hope of peaceful settlement not only of the prob­
lems mentioned in them, but of other equally important 
ones, including the German problem and those of the 
Far East. It would hold out before mankind the pros­
pect of an economic renaissance and of a development 
of trade and cultural relations, and give under-devel­
oped countries hope of improving their position. 

22. Mr. BARANOVSKY (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 
Republic) stated that since the end of the Second 
World \i\Tar, the USSR and the countries supporting it 
had endeavoured to avert the threat of a new war and 
to strengthen international peac~ and se~urity, whe~eas 
the United States had created mternatwnal complica­
tions threatening the security of nations. Thus, the 
USSR had repeatedly submitted proposals designed to 
relieve international tension, with the conviction that 
there were no international disputes that could not be 
settled by peaceful means, provided the parties to such 
disputes showed goodwill. 
23. Yet there was serious doubt that the United 
States and the western Powers in general had that spirit 
of goodwill. At the present session of the General As­
sembly, the United States and the United Kingdom 
representatives had succeeded in having the USSR pro­
posal which was of manifest urgency and importance 
placed at the end of the agenda. They now claimed 
that the proposals were not new and would do nothing 



266 General Assembly-Eighth Session-First Committee 

to brinv about a relaxation in international tension. The 
Gree!·: ~l-pr cscnt.11ive had even m::i::tained that they had 
been submitted solely for propaganda purposes and that 
they should be rejected out of hand. 

24. 'While it was true that some of those proposals 
ha1l been submitted at earlier sessions, the fact that they 
had not been adopted only proved that the forces of 
aggression stubbornly tried to oppose any measu.res 
for strengthening international peace and secunty. 
l\J oreover, the decisions which the General Assembly 
had previously taken under United States pressure 
did not reflect the desires of the peoples of the world 
which in each case had supported the USSR propo­
sals. The rejection of those proposals had certainly been 
an encouragement to trouble-makers and had given 
new impetus to the armaments race. The promptness 
with which the United States and the western States 
had refused to examine the USSR proposals revealed 
the hidden motives of the ruling circles of the United 
States and the hypocritical nature of the protestations 
of United States political leaders regarding the peaceful 
intentions of the United States. 

25. Some speakers had poin.ted out that the Un~ted 
States continued to develop Its armaments, notwith­
standino- the conclusion of the Korean armistice agree­
ment \~hich showed that the war in Korea had been 
used' by the rulers of the United States merely as a 
pretext to put the western worl~ on a war foot!ng. The 
reactionary circles of the Umted States w1she~ to 
increase international tension in order that relatiOns 
between the United States and the USSR might de­
teriorate further. A new wave of propaganda was 
sweepinrr the United States; much was again being 
made of the military threat of the USSR for the pur­
pose of influencing publ!~ opinion and obtair:ing addi­
tional allocations for m1htary purposes. Actmg along 
those lines, the United States delegation had submitted 
to the General Assembly slanderous proposals regard­
inrr the prisoners of war allegedly still being held in 
th~ USSR, the so-called forced labour in the USSR 
and atr0cities claimed to have been committed against 
United States prisoners of war. It was significant that 
the United States journalist James Reston should have 
written in the New Y or/~ Times, with reference to 
that anti-Soviet propaganda, that the United States 
wished to create an atmosphere of distrust and fear of 
the might of the USSR so as to obtain further credits 
for armaments. 

26. The United States delegation had tried to deny 
that United States policy was aggressive. It .had cit~d 
President Eisenhower's statement of 16 Apnl 1953 m 
which he had said that the United States desired peace 
and disarmament. Yet the United States Government 
had taken no practical measure to that end. On the con­
trary, it had intensified the armaments race and had 
developed the aggressive power of NATO. The report 
of the President of the United States to Congress on 
16 August 1953 on the mutual security programme 
emphasized that the United States supply of armaments 
to the free world had increased by two-thirds durinR 
the first half of 1953 as compared with the second half 
of 1952. Thus the purpose of the United States policy 
was to increase military preparations for purposes 
hostile to the Soviet Union. 

27. Attempts had however been made to pass those 
preparations for aggression off as measures for the 
defence of the free world. However, the establishment 

of air :md naval bases in Greenland, Iceland, near the 
~ ort!1 Pole, in MoroccD, Spai :1 , Gre~ce, the 1\Iiddle 
East and elsewhere could hardly be exp~ained away as 
United States defence measures . J\ccunh;g to the 
weeldy u.s. N Cc'.}S & vVorld Report, the United .stat.es 
was supposed to have 109 military bases outs1de Its 
territory. If the secret bases were added, the total num­
ber of installations abroad was several hundred. Over 
half of the total number of United States soldiers and 
saihrs were stationed outside United States frontiers. 
While every State was entitled to defend its frontiers, 
the policy of the United States and the NATO States 
had nothing to do with defence. United States Senators 
Morse and Long, after vi siting some sixty United 
States bases abroad, had stated in a report to the Senate 
that the inhaoitants of the States on the territories 
of which the bases were being erected were dissatisfied, 
and the nci..,.hbourina States were disturbed. In that 

• ~ b ' connexwn, Senator Long had drawn the Senate s at-
tention to the legitimate concern that the people of the 
United States would feel if the Soviet Union, for 
example, had constructed air bases that mig~t accom~­
date bombers in Canada Bermuda and Mexico, and If 
it had sent large military forces to those countries. 

28. The United Kingdom representative had cl~!med 
( 673rd meeting) that the establishment of m~htary 
bases by one State on the territory of an aii.Y dzd not 
impair the latter's independence and sovere1gnty. He 
had further added that the construction of those bases 
promoted economic and technical progress. Naturally, 
the Cnited Kingdom representative could not p:ove 
his statement, for there was no proof. The Press ot the 
Scandinavian States, for example, had clearly reflected 
the attitude of the population, in declaring that in 
Denmark and Norway, United States pressure had 
not been able to overcome national resistance to the 
construction of military bases and the occupation of the 
country by foreign troops. The newspaper f:e M onde 
had noted that, in order to construct the air base of 
Nouasseur in Morocco, 6,000 Arabs had had to be 
evicted from a particularly fertile region. As a result 
of the construction of bases in ] a pan that country's 
rice production had dropped considerably .. In short, 
it was easy to show that instead of pr?motmg econ<?­
mic and technical progress, the establishment of air 
bases always had harmful results. 

29. The agreement of 12 October 1953 be~we~n 
Greece ancl the United States was also aggressiVe m 
nature. The Greek representative bad end.e~voured 
(67lst meeting) to prove the contrary by c1tmg Ar­
ticle 52 of the Charter relating to regional arrangements 
and by basing himself on the interpretation of that 
article rriven by Goodrich and Hambro and by Kelsen. 
In poi;t of fact, Goodrich cited an Egyptia_n amend­
ment that had been rejected at San Francisco. a~ter 
having been approved by the Preparator.f CommissiOn. 
The amendment had stipulated that regwnal arrange­
ments could be made between permanent groups. of 
States belonging to a given .geographic~!. region, ~avll:g 
linguistic, cultural, histoncal or spmtual tra.tts m 
common or havina common interests. Obvwusly, 
Greece ;nd the United States did not belong to the 
same rreoaraphical region or have a common culture, 
langu;ge 

0
or history. While it was equally true t~at 

Kelsen stated in his commentary that geographical 
proximity was not necessary if. States ~vere bound by a 
common interest to develop mternatwnal peace and 
security, that interpretation would be inacceptable as 



675th Meeting-25 November 1953 267 

it did not define the concept of common interest. What 
was more, it was dangerous as the United States 
claimed to have common interests with all States on 
the territories of which it wished to erect bases. Lastly, 
Article 52 referred to the peaceful settlement of local 
disputes. Obviously, there could not be any local con­
flict between Greece and the United States. Conse:­
quently, the Greek representative had not proved that 
the agreement between his country and the United 
States was a regional agreement. Mr. Kyrou's state­
ments on the subject of NATO were also mistaken. 
The members of NATO were united only by their plans 
of aggression and conquest. There was no need to refute 
the statement that the agreement between Greece and 
the United States was a friendly act towards the USSR, 
for the erection of military bases near the frontiers 
of the USSR could hardly be so regarded. 

30. It must be remembered that General Twining, 
Chief of Staff of the United States Air Force, had 
stated that the network of American bases in Morocco, 
Spain, the Balkans and the Middle East would make 
it possible to round out the strategic striking force of 
the United States. Those aggressive plans were also 
echoed in the American Press. The New York Times 
of 19 October 1953 had spoken of using the armed 
forces of Turkey against the USSR, the New York 
Herald Tribune o£ 12 November had envisaged the 
establishment of bases in Pakistan as a means of 
strengthening the United States position against the 
USSR. The newspaper had added that those bases 
might serve not only as. a starting point for attacks 
against the USSR, but also as landing fields for 
bombers which, having set out from the Thule base, had 
attacked the USSR after flying over the North Pole. 
On 11 November, the New York Times had expressed 
the view that the USSR proposals would result in the 
suicide of the free world and it had affirmed that peace 
must be maintained by force. 

31. It had been asserted that the aim of the USSR 
proposals was to bring about the unilateral disarmament 
of the free world. That contention had already been 
refuted, and the alleged superiority of the Soviet Union 
in conventional armaments was being used as an 
excuse for not accepting the USSR proposals. Lastly, 
Admiral Radford had stated on 13 November that the 
United States might reduce their land forces by pro­
viding for the use of atomic weapons on a large scale. 
That was why the New York Times had expressed 
the view that the United States should avoid all nego­
tiations which might result in the control of atomic 
energy. Clearly, therefore, the United States was op­
posed to the USSR proposals for the reduction of ar­
maments, the prohibition of weapons of mass destruc­
tion and the establishment of strict international con­
trol over that prohibition, the reason for its opposition 
being that it wanted to be able to use atomic weapons 
in a preventive attack upon the USSR. 

32. In his last speech, the representative of the United 
States had quoted (674th meeting) an article, three 
years old from Pravda published in the Ukraine and 
had tried' to prove that the Ukraine had engaged in a 
campaign of hatred against the ruling circles in the 
United States. He had not understood that the hatred 
was directed not against any particular circles, but only 
against an imperialist. and aggressive policy. The repre­
.sentative of the Umted Stat~s had claimed, on the 
other hand, that the campaign against the USSR and 

the peoples' republics was the outcome of freedom 
of speech in the United States. It would, however, be 
impossible to quote articles in the United States bour­
geois Press attacking the aggressive policy of that 
country and demanding the prohibition of atomic 
weapons. It must be added that the slander engaged 
in by the United States Press against the USSR was 
part of a broad campaign of hatred which was reflected 
even in the United States Congress. 

33. The USSR proposals were particularly realistic 
and urgent. They represented minimum measures and 
bore witness to the peace-loving policy of the Soviet 
Union. If the United States was really not pursuing 
aggressive purposes, it could prove that that was so 
·by adopting every one of those proposals. The Ukrain­
ian delegation presumed that the United States would 
understand that the foreign policy of the United States 
was a serious obstacle to international co-operation and 
must inevitably lead to war. The Ukrainian delegation 
would therefore vote for the USSR proposals. 

34. Mr. ARZE QUIROGA (Bolivia) said that once 
more the First Committee had before it a question 
closely connected with that of disarmament. By its 
resolutions 190 (III) and 377 A (V), the Assembly 
had already laid down the principles by which disar­
mament and the preservation of peace should be 
governed. 

35. The USSR proposals amounted to an appeal to 
the great Powers for the reduction of armaments and 
the prohibition of atomic weapons, and to a request 
for the prohibition of military bases abroad and the 
adoption of definite measures to put an end to the 
propaganda of hatred against other States. 

36. The problem of disarmament had been dealt with 
at each session of the Assembly in succession, but 
hitherto the result had only been failure. The proposals 
for putting an end to the campaign of hatred were 
interesting from the moral point of view. The USSR 
thouo-ht, however, that the propaganda was the cause 
of th~ hatred, whereas it seemed rather to be its effect. 
The deep roots of hatred and distrust must be. so?ght 
in ignorance or forgetfulness of the moral prme1ples 
by which the West had been guided for two thousand 
years. The problem facing the twentieth century was 
to place material force, if not at the service of justice, 
at any rate at the service of peace and security in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter. To 
lessen the harmful effects of such propaganda, it would 
sometimes be useful to restrict the public nature of 
United Nations debates. The world could not return to 
the methods of secret diplomacy, but certain items, 
particularly those dealing with disarmament, should 
be debated at closed meetings so as to prevent recourse 
to propaganda which might be contrary to the aim of 
peace. 

37. The USSR proposal for the avoidance of war 
propaganda would in fact result in a series of r~stric­
tions being placed on civic freedom and was obvwusly 
unacceptable to the States of the West. 

38. Lastly, so far as Europe was co'?-cerned, it "':as 
undeniable that that part of the world displayed a spir­
itual unity which had not yet found its P?litical form. 
Geographically, it was a peninsula of Asm. The con­
tinent of Asia was directly or indirectly controlled by 
the USSR. The population of Europe was with justifi-



268 General A.uembly-Eighth Session-First Committee 

cation attempting to defend itself against the growing 
strength of its eastern neighbours. At all events, its 
defensive attitude was legitimate and was a step in the 

Printed in U.S.A. 

direction of the formation of the United States of 
Europe. 

The meeting rose at 1.5 p.m. 

M-42200-January 1954-2,000 




